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Dear Sharoholder,

The Board of Directors is pleased 1o present the Annual Report of Swan Wealth Managers Lid for the year
ended December 31, 2019, eontonts of which are listed below:

The Board of Directors of the Company strives (o apply principles of good corporate govemance,
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SWAN WEALTH MANAGERS LTD

1{n)
PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND OTHER STATUTORY DISCLOSURES - DECEMBER 11, 2019

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

Tha principal activitics of the Company consist of fund management and advisory services to sophisticated
INYEELaTE,

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company ns at December 31, 2019 and at the date of this report were:
Mr. Louis RIVALLAND

Mr. Peroomal Gopallen MOORODGEN

Mr. Mitish BENI MADHU

DIRECTORS' SERVICE CONTRACTS

There were no service coniracts between the Company and any of its Directors that need to be diselosed
under Section 221 of the Companies Act 2001,

DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION AND BENEFITS

Remuneration and benelits received or due and receivable from the Company woere as follows:

2019 2018

Rs, s,
Directors fees - Execulive directon
Louis Rivalland 20,000 20,000
Mitish Benimndhu 20,000 20,000
Direciors fees - Non-executlve direciors
Gopallon Moaroogon 20,000 20,000

s, 60,000 60,000
e TR, A R SR

DONATION

There was donation of Rs 2.6m made by the Company during the year (201 8: Nil),
AUDITOR'S FEES

The fees payable to the nuditors, BRO & Co. for audit were as [ollows: 1019 2018

Audit fees paid to:
-BDO & Co

The Auditors, Messrs, BDO & Co, have expressed their willingness to ¢ontinue in office and a resolution
proposing thelr re-appointment will be submitted at the Annual Moeting of the shareholder,

The nuditors did not receive any fees for other services,
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Swan Wealth Managers Ltd (the *Company') is a Public Interest Entity a3 defined by the Financial Reporting Act
2004,

1. GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE

Swan Wealth Managers Ltd is headed by a unitary Board, The Board is ultimately responsible for providing
effective leadership and is responsible and accountable for the affairs of the Company, The Board assumes
rospansibility for, inter alia, setting the strntegic direction, oversecing the financial and investment affalrs,
corpornte govemance, risk munagement, internal control and compliance issues. The Board s also the link
between the Company and the shareholders,

The Company does not have a board charter as it considers that the legislation is sufficiently clear as to the
respective roles, respongibilities and authorities of the Bonrd of directors. The Company hat a code of ethics
which explains the Company's and group's policics on how we conduet buginess in Mauritius and beyond.
Employees, officers and members of the Board of Directors alike commit 1o understanding the code and abiding
by its principles, The pringiples support full complinnce with applicable laws. They also represent the practical
ways that we put our values to work every day. Our corporate values, Passion, People and Performance, serve
ns the foundation for the code, The code nlie containg provisions on whistle blowing and provides inter alia,
for anonymous reporting of unethical conducts,

The day to day operations are entrusted 1o management under the responsibility of the Group Chisl Executive,
Members of senior management have clenrly defined job deseriptions, Senior management report to the Group
Chiefl Execuilve.

The eode of ethics and constitution have been published on the website of Swan Group,

2. STRUCTURE OF THE BOARD AND ITS COMMITTEES

Swan Wealth Managers Ltd is headed by a unitary Board and consists of two execiitives and one independent
non-executive director, Members of the Board have a diverse set of skills, knowledge nnd come from different
sphere of the busingss community, There i eurrently no female gender on the Board, as the Board was
constituted before such requirement, Collectively, the Board is well structured and of sufficient gize o discharge
its duties, having regard to the activities and size of the Company and the group.

The Croup Chiel Executive, together with the executive director, have the day-te-day management
responsibility for the operations, implementing the siralegics and policies agreed by the Board.

Thete it one independent non-executive divector. The independent director brings a range of experience and
skills to the Board and free from any business or other relationships which could materially affect his ability to
exercise independent judgement, congtructively digsent and Is o critical by-stander. The Board is satislied that
one independent direetor is sufficlent having regard to the activities and size of the Company.

All the directors are ordinarily resident in Maurtius.
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The Directors of the Company are:

Mr, Nitigh Beni Madhu (Executive)
Mr, Giopallen Mooroagen (Independent Non-Executive)
Mr. Louls Rivalland (Exeeutive) (Group Chiel Executive)

The Profile of the dircetors are as follows:

Louls RIVALLAND

Louis Rivalland, bom in 1971, holds o Bachelor's degree in Actuarinl Science and Statistics, a Posi
Graduate Diploma in Strategy and Innovation from SAID Business School, University of Oxford and is a
qualified Actuary from the Faculty and Institute of Actuarics,

He wan part of the managemaent team of Commergial Union in South Afvico from 1994 w January 1997
and eonclucted several assignments for Commerecial Union in Europe. From Februnry 1997 to July 1999
he worked as Actuary and Consultant at Watson Wyall Worldwide developing the investment function as
well as enhancing the healthears Tunetion,

In August 1999, he joined Swan as Consultant to Group Chiel Executive, He was involved in the review
and setting up of processes and systems for the pensions, investments and life insurance operations and
was responsible for the sctuarinl and consultancy work for the pengion schemes,

From January 2002 to December 2004, he acted as Executive Manager of The Anglo-Mauritiux Assurance,
now Swan Life Lid. In January 2005 he has been appointed Group Chief Operations OiTicer responsible
for the aperations of Swan Insurance, now Swan Genernl Ltd and The Anglo-Mauritius Assuranee, now
Swan Life Lid, and member of the Executive Management Commiitee of Swan.

He had been the President of the Joint Economic Council, now Business Mauritius and of the Insurers’
Associntion of Mauritius, He has played an active role in the development of risk manngement,
investments, insurance and pensions i Mauritius having chaired or boen part of various technical
commitiees {n ihese fields,

List of other dircetorahips:

Company namax Position | | Company names Posttion
Aprica Investmenis CoLid | Diector | | Swon Financiol Solwlons Lid | Directar
Manufaetirery' Distributing Director Swan Foundation B Directar
Statton Limiied | o=
Mew Manriting Hoteld Limited Direetor Swin Conaral Lid Direotar
Proceasure Compagnie Limitde Direetar ﬁh;nr.-flﬁu:n-r;ilﬁi-&.ﬁ.ml 'f;lim_n:;lr

Swin Corporate Affairs Lul Chreetor Swan Life Lidd Dlrectar

Swan Digital L1 Direetor Swan Pension Lid Directar
Swan Waalth Struciured Produe Drieetor Swin Reinuirance PCC Director

]E-:Enn Waalth International Lid Direcior Swan Special Risks Co Lid Director
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Gopallen MOOROOGEN

Bom in 1959, Gopallen Mooroogen 15 o lellow of the Associntion of Chartered Certified Accountants
(FCCA). He also holds an MBA from the University of Wales / Manchester Business School. He has been
o director on the Board of the Stock Exchange of Mauritius (SEM) and the Central Depository Services
Lid {CDS) for o number of years and has been the Chairman of the SEM lor a few years. He is currenily
Head - Finanee Transformation st Mauritius Telecom,

List of other directorships:

| Cenmpany Nome Poalifon

Swir Life Lul Direetor

I_Emn,ﬂuinlumn-:c PCC Chreetog
awan Speainl Risks Company

" i DHieetod

efil Lid Dhirectior

wan Pangipne oL TSI

Nitish BENIMADHU

Born in 1979, Mitish Beni Madhu holds an honours degree in Economics and Masters of Arts in Economics
from the University of Ottawa (Canada).

He hag more than 15 yonrs® experience in the finance industry and has experise in assel management,
investment advisory and insurance. He i the chairperson of the Central Dopository & Sottlement Co Lid
(CD5) and also holds directorship positions on  the Stock Exchange of Mauritivs, MDA
Properties, Constance Holels Services Lid, Moka City Lid amongst others and regularly lecturers ol the
UI'IWEII'HI}’ of Mauritivg in Economics & Finange, He jomed Anglo Mauritiug Investmeil MIII'IH;".'#I‘E- Lid
(now Swan Wealih Managers Lid) in 2005 and now heads the non-insuranee ¢luster of SWAN {Capital
Markets) together with the Loans and Property segments of SWAN. Nitish s n member of the Investment
Committee of SWAN and {5 equally involved with investment projects of the group in Africa.

List ol other directorships:

| Cognininy Mo Poxliton
Central Depository and Settlement Co Lid Chirperson

The Stock Fxchango of Maurifivy | Dircctor
MDA Propertiss Director

| Conatance Hatels Sorvicos Ltd | Diregtor |
Moka Clry Lid Direator
Swin Digital Ltd — | Dircctar
Swan Financial Solutions Director
Dalberg Rental (Pty) Lid == Rirgstor
Swan Wealth Structired Products Lid LHiector

| Swan Digital Ltd . Dirgetor
sSwin Financial Solutions Li Director
Swan Woalth International | Directar

The Company Socretary plays a key rolo in the application of corporate governance, All directors have
accoss to the advice nnd services of the Company Seoretary, who provides guidance to the Directors on their
stntutory responsibilities, ethics and good governance.



EWAN WEALTH MANAGERS LTD
2(e)
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REFMORT - YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2019

The Company Secrotary acts os o vital bridge between the Board nnd the executive management and ensures
that the management, in n timely munner, provides the Board and its Committees with all information. The

Company Secretary discharged his duties as per the stalutory requiremenis,
Mr. Jaiyansing Soobah acts as the Group Compuny Secretary and below is his profile:

Jaiyansing (Shallen) SOOBAH
FCCA, MBA, Dip ClI
Group Company Secretary, Group Risk Officer

Bomm in 1974, 15 a Fellow af the Assaciation of Chartered Certified Accountants ond holds o Master in
Businoss Administration. He started his career with De Chazal Du Mdée (now BDO) where he spent 10
years in the audit and offshore departinents. 1n 2003, he moved 1o the Financial Services Commission in
the insurance supervision department,

In 2009, he jomaed CIM Group, and was subsequently nppointed as Senior Manager Compliance of the
insurance and investment clusier. He joined SWAN with the merger of the insurance businesses of Swan
and CIM in June 2012, He is currently Senlor Manager - Giroup Company Secretary and Giroup Risk Officer,
He nlso holds directorship positions in the subsidiaries of Swan Group, He is the Non-Exeeutive Chairman
of The Stock Exchange of Mauritius and o Non-Executive Director of the Central Dapository & Settlement
Co. Lid,

Bonrd Commitices

Two commitlees are constituted ot the level of the group = the Audit & Risks Committee and the Corporate
Governance Committoe, The terms of reference of the two committees which were approved by the Board
have been posted on the website.

Audit & Risks Commitice

The Committee consists of four non-executive directors, three of whom are independent, including the
Chairperson. The members are:

n) Mr. Arif Currimjee (Independent)

b} Mr. Henrl Harel (non-executive)

¢) Mr, Gopallen Mooroagen (Chairpetson) (indepandent)

d) Mr, Victor Soeyave (independent)

Mr. Jniynnsing Soobah, acts as secretary of the Commitiee,

The Committee meots ot least four times a year. The Oroup Chief Executive is not a member of the
Committee. He is in attendance unless a conflict of interest is likely to arise.

Members of the Committee have ample financial awarencss, Members of the senior management, the

external auditors and the interial auditors regularly attend meetings of the Group Audit & Risks Committee,

as are relevant, The Group Audit Committee meats regularly with the External Auditor (including once at

the planning stage before the audit and once after the nudit at the reporiing stage). The Group Audit

Committee has not met external auditor without management presence,

During the year, the Committee met five times and the main issues discussed and delibernted on were:

a) Yearly audited accounts = consideration and recommendation to the Board for approval;

b) Taking cognizance of significant issues from the external auditors’ management letter and agreeing on
management actions to implement recommendations;
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c)

d)
e)
£
)

1

Abridged quarterly secounts - consideration and recommendation to the Board for approval and
publication;

Internal audii — consideration of intemal audit reports;

Complianee Plan ~ taking stock of the main arens of focus of the compliance funetion for 2019,
Approval of auditors’ fees for audit and non-audit services;

Risk management = consideration and stntus on implemeniation of the risk management framework nnd
new regulatory rules, the Insurance (Risk Management) Rules 2016,

Change in auditors,

In relation to risks, the Commiitees responsibilitios are, inter alia, to;

o)
b)

&)
i)

review and ussess the integrity of the risk control systems ond ensuring that risk policies and stralegies
are effectively managed;

set out the nature, role, responsibility and nuthority of the risk management funétion and outlining the
scope of rigsk management work,

keep abreast of external developments relating to the practice of corporate accountabllity;

review and provide an independent and objective oversight on reports submitied by management on
corporaie accouniability and specifically how associated risks are being mitigated.

Corporate Govemance Commitice

The Group Corporate Governance Commitice’s terms of reference, which comprises arcas covered by a
MNomination and Remuneration Commitiee, include, inter alin, the following:

]

b)

determining, agreeing aid developing the genernl policy on corporato governanee in accordance with
the Code of Corporate Governance, legal compliance and ethical policies;

assisting the Board on establishing n formal and transparent procedure for developing a remuneration
policy lor execut {ver nne senlor minagemaent;

putting in place plans for succession;

making recommendations to the Board an all new Board appointments; nnd

determining the level of emoluments of oxecutive, non-executive, independent non-executive directors
and Board Committee membors,

The Committee consists of the following non-executive directors:

)
b)
€)
d)

Mr. Arif Currimjee (Independent)

My, Micolas Magrot (Chairpéraon}

Mr. Gapallen Mooroogen (independent)
Mr. Victar Seeyave (independent)

The Ciroup Chiel Exccutive is in attendance, The Company Secretary, Mr, Jalyansing Soobah, nots as
secretary of the Committee.

The Committee met once during the year, Decisions are also taken by written resolutions, Main 1ssues
deliberated by the Commiitee are remuneration (perlomnance bonus, salary increase), appointment of new
directors and corpornte govermnanee repart,
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3

Adtendunce of the directors ot board committees for 2019 were as fallows:

Dircetors | Audit & Risks Corporate
Comimitice Governunes
AL e ; _Committee
- 5
MITISH BENI MADHU
“ARIF CURRIMIEE. 5 I
HEMEI HAREL 2
NICOLAS MAIGROT ! |
GOPALLEN MOOROOGEN / 4 |
| LOUIS RIVALLAND'
VICTOR SEEYAVE 5 |

T T T T T T T T T
2 Ulomrprspin, A o8 Bk §umvanniey
A o ntiwimdianie vt i wressben)

DIRECTOR APPOINTMENT FROCEDURES

Appolntment of new directors |8 subject to a pre-determined process. Potentinl condidates are identified by
the Group Corporate Governance Committee. The selection is made based on, inter alia, skills, business
ncumen, industry knowledge, experience nnd independence (where relevant).

The Group Corporate Governance Committoe then makes recommendation o the Board of Directors and/or
sharcholders {as relevant). Direetor appointiment is also subject o the approval of the Financial Services
Commission, under section 24 of the Financial Services Act, The law provides that a director (Officer) must
be a fit and proper parson,

All new directors are provided with an induction pack, which covers, inter alia, background information on
the Company and the group, vision, mission & values, the regulatory and compliance landscape, products
and services, governanee structure ete, The Group Chief Executive and Company Scoretary are always
available 1o provide any additional information that may be required by newly appointed dircotors.

The Constitution of the Compnny does not provide for annual re=clection of directors.

Succession planning of key officeholders has been delegated by the Board to the Group Chief Executive,

The following hns been published on the Company's website = a briel write-up ol directors and the
Company Seoretary and details of the nomination & appointiment process,
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4.

DIRECTOR DUTIES, REMUNERATION AND PERFORMANCE

All directors are aware of their legal duties, Directors” duties emanate mainly from the Compantes Act and
the Securities Aet,

The Company has o Code of Ethics, which is applicable to employees and Directors. Monitoring daystos
dany compliance wiih the code rests with senior manngement. Important issues, if any, are escalated to the
Board. The code explaing Swan's policies for how business is conducted in Mauritiug and beyond. The
principles of the code support full compliance with applicable laws.

They also reprosent the practical ways that Swan put its values 1o work every day, Our corporate values,
Passion, People & Performance, serve a8 the foundation for this Code, Our values guide our actions i
conducting business in o socially responsible and ethical manner, Dircetors are expected to!

a) actin good faith and in the best interest of the organisation;

b)) earry oul their duties diligently, in on honest manner ond with reasonable competence;

o) observe the highest degree of confidentiality;

d) avoid situations of conflict of interest, and where such situations arise, disclose same and adhere to all
procedures for dealing with it

¢) consistenily atiend boord meetings and devote sulficient time to the organisation’s business;

) deal with shares of the company in strict compliance of all relevant laws;

g)  abstain from fuking improper advantage of their position for personal gain; and

h) abide by all dircctors’ obligations imposed by all laws,

In aceordance with the Companies At 2001, the Compnny Secretary maintains an interests register. As
soon ng o Director/Officer becomes aware that he |5 interested in n transaction, or that his holdings or that
ol his nasociates hove changed, the interest should be reported to the Company Secretary in writing,

The register of Directors’ and Officers’ Interests is updated with every transaction notified by the
Directors/Officers and their associntes, All new Directors/Officers are required o notify in writing to the
Company Sccretnry their holdings in the Company's shares, According to the Company's Constitution, a
Dirogtor is not required (o hold shares in the Company.

No directors had any interests in the shares of the Campany.

Confliets of interests are diselosed by direetors as soon as they become nware that they are Interested in n
transaction, All interests, as disclosed by the directors, are recorded. Conlflicts of interest nnd related party
trananctions have been conducted in strict complinnce with applicable legislations and the code of ethios.
All related party transactions disclosures, ns are legally required to be disclosed, are made in the annual
report. The Company does not have any conflict of interest and related party policies, as the Board considers
that these are ndequately covered under current lnws.

Information, information technology and information segurity govermanes

The Board is responsible for information governance. At Board level, executive management and the
Company Sccrefury ensure that Directors receive adequate, timely and accurate information to be able 10
discharge their duties. Directors are under obligations to keep all information conlidential,

Where necessary in the discharge of their duties, all directors may seck independent professional advice ot
the Company's expense, The Company has adequate Directors & Olficers Insurance,
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Daystosdny IT governance and security issucs are delegated to senior management, 1T expenses are
monitored through the budgeting process. The Company has in place a number of IT policles, the purposes
of which are to:

a) to clarify the requirements, prehibitions, and procedures applicable to the use of the Company’s
mmpuling and network resourees;

by provide guidelines 1o encourage responsible behaviour and good management practice;

¢) enaure that IT facilities nnd services provided by the Company are used logally, securely, effectively
and in & spirit of eo-aperation and trust.

The policies cover o range of aspects, including physical security, users access & passwords, computer
viruses, installation & modifications of the IT systems, emails, inlemet, copyrights & license ugreements,
smart devices, confidentiality and remote aceess, Given the gensitivity of these policies, the Company s
still considering the appropristencss of having these policies on the website,

A Board evaluation was conducted in 2018, 1t wis résolved that bonrd evaluation will be conducted every
three yenrs,

5!

REMUNERATION POLICY

Remuneration of directors is determined by the Corporate Governance Commitice,

The Bourd is responsible for the remuneration policy of the Group and duties are delegated to the Group
Human Resource (HR) managemant team.

The Remuneration policy has the following aims;

To support the dalivery of the Group's strategy, whilst ensuring adherence to the SWAN"S risk appetite;
To ensure remuneration is competitive for our markets to enable SWAN attract and retain talent;

Ta ensure that pay levels are internally consistent and externally competitive;

To reward employees according to their market value, performance and contribution;

To ensure that the remuneration package promotes a high performance culture and i allordable;

To ensure falr outcomes for our human resources, sharcholders and customers,

« ® ® @® @ =

Non-executive directors have not recetved any remuneration in the form of share options or bonuses
arsociated with the Company's performance, Non-executive directors receive a fixed director foe.

Directors’ remuneration for the year was os follows:

From the
Company
| (Rs)
Executive Directors . 40,000
ﬂl-:“ Keeutiy [5 CLOTA | m“,',__ 20,000
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0.

RISK GOVERNANCE AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board has ultimate responsibility for risk monagement and intemnal control and remains ultimately

responsible for

n)  Setting up a risk management framewaork

b) Oversecing the implementation and subsequent menilofning

¢) Determining the risk culture

d) Providing managemant with leadership and guidance

) Ensuring that any person responsible for risk monagement hos the appropriate skill, knowledge,
independance and autharity

f)  Delining the roles and responsibilities of managemant

The Group Audit & Risks Commiitee is mandated by the Board 1o oversee all visk mansgement and internal
control fssues, The sk of implementing a robust system of risk management has been delogated to senior
management,

The system of intemnal controls has been designed 1o salegunrd nssets of the Company from unauthorised
use. The Company maintains proper records to ensure effective operation of its business and compliance
with laws and regulations.

Management is direetly responsible for Implementing the strategios and poli¢ies adopted by the Board, and
for managing all of the Company's activities, including the operation af the intemal control system,

The systemn of internal controls is designed to provide assuranee against material misstatement or loss, and
to manage risks of failure in operational systoms.

Key nrens of effective internal controls are as follows:

0) A elear organisation structure, ineluding the delegation of appropriate responsibilitics o the Board
commitiees, the Group Chiel Exeeutive, senior management and to the heads of operating unis,

by The effectivencss of interal controls is nasessed by considering the recommendations of the Audit &
Risks Committes, reports of the intemal nuditors, statutory actuary and the extemnal auditors;

¢) A comprehensive management information and accounting system is in place to provide relinble
finaneial and operational Dﬁl'rﬂrmmlﬂﬂ datn;

d) There is an ongoing effort to review, reassess and document the process and procedures for each
operating uiit;

¢) A complianee function has been put in place under the leadership of the Money Laundering Reporiing
Officer and clear compliance procedures have bean established to ensure complionce with all applicable
Inws, rules, regulations and codes;

f) Management has put in place appropriate finanelal and operational controls by way of segregation af
duties nnd financial/monetary limits;

Internal contral covers all material funetions of the company. Board, through the Audit & Risks Committee
and senior management, is regularly apprised of the assessment of intornal control. Deficlencies, if any, are
promply considered by Management and action plans devised to address all sueh deficiencies. Internal and
external auditors also have access to the Board.
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7. REPFORTING WITH INTEGRITY

The Board is responsible for the praparation of the annual report and accounts that falrly present the staie
of affairs of the organisation and the resulis of it operations and that comply with Intemational Finaneial
Reporting Standards (IFRS) and the Companies Aet, Likewise, the Board has the responsibility for selecting
approprinte accounting policies based on reasonable and prudent judgements. The annual report comprises,
inter alia, an overview/structure and history of the company and group, the financial statements, risk report,
report from the Group Chiel’ Executive and Chalrperson, detnils on our corporate social responsibility,
information and profile of our senior management team.

The Boord considers that the annual report and accounts, taken as a whole, are fair, balan¢ed and
understandable and provide the information necessary for shareholders and other key stakeholders 1o nssess
the Company's position, performance and outlook,

Dividend policy

The Company does not follow a formal dividend poliey. Dividends are declored after taking into account
the Company's profitability and the solvency requirements of the Companies Act. The Company declares
dividend in December based on best estimaies of yenrly resulis to 31 December.

Sharcholders Agreement
There were no such sharcholders agreement which was exceuted for the period under review that has an
effect on the governance of the Company.

Environmentnl [ssues

The Company has an ebligation to proteet and preserve the environiment, It respects the environment and
the business of the Compuny ensures that there is litle impact on the environment. The Company comply
with all applicable laws and regulations, We adopt standards, procedures, contingency measures and
managemenlt ayslems (o enaure that our operations are managed sofely, ecologically and in a sustainable
Wiy,

Health and Safety
The Company has in place well defined procedures and practices with regards to Health and Salety,
Wellness programs for employees of the Company are erganised regularly,

Soclal [ssues

It is the Company's pelicy to comply with all applicable laws, rules and regulations. It Is the personal
responsibility of cach employee to adhere (o the standards and restrictions imposed by those laws, rules and
regulations.

The Company regpecta each individual's human rights and will not discriminate on the basis of race, color,
religion, ereed, sex, age, socinl status, family origin, physical or mental disability or sexual orientation, nar
will it commit other violations of human rights.
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AUDIT

Internal Audit
Internal Audit is an objective assurance funciion reporting to the Group Audit & Risks Committoe and the
Board, 1t derives its suthority from the Board through the Audii aidd Risks Committee.

Collectively, Audit Commitiee members have the necessary financial literacy and expertise,  Internal
auditors are appointed by the Boord, following recommendation from the Audit and Risks Committee.
Iniemal audit of the company and group 15 autseurced to Emst & Young, The Internal Auditors are
responsible for providing assurance to the Board, through the Group Audit & Risks Committee, regarding
the implementation, operation and glTectiveness of internal control and risks managemaent,

A risk based 3=year road map is prepared. The internal audit plan, which is approved by the Group Audit
and Risks Commitlee, 8 based on the principles of risk management to align coverage and effort with the
degree of risk atributable to the areas sudited. The plan is reviewed yearly.

The Intermal Auditors have n direct reporting ling to the Group Audit & Risks Committee and maintain an
apen and copstriclive communication with gxeculive manhgement. Thu;,r also have direel aceess o the
Chairperson of the Committees and of the Board,

This reporting structure allows the Internal Auditors to remain independent and report all tems of
significance to the Board/Group Audit nind Risks Committoe. They have unrestricted nccess to the records,
management and employces,

They set as 8 source of constructive advice and best practice, assisting the Group Audit and Risks
Commitlee inils mupc.ngmhhy to improve the processes by which risks nre identified and managed, Interial
audit reports are sent to the Group Audit & Risks Committee,

External Audit

Our external auditors nre BDO & Co. External auditors nre appointed/re-appointed by ghareholders.
Audliors remuneration is fixed by the Board, following recommendation from the Group Audlt & Risks
Committee. External nuditors have unrestricted nceess to the Group Audit & Risks Committee. The
Company s satisfled with the extérnal audit process.

For the presentation and approval of audited yearly linancial statements, external auditors meet with the
Group Audit & Risks Committee, During the meeting, key audit matiers and significant issues of the
management letter are presented by the extornal auditors,

BDO & Cao. has been the audiiors of the Company for more than 7 years.
During 2019, the following fees apply to BDO & Co:

| For audit services i Rs 95,000 |
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT - YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2019

9, RELATIONSHIPF WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND OTHER KEY STAKEHOLDERS

The only sharcholder holding direetly more than 5% of the Company is Swan Finangial Solutions Lud,
which holds 100% of the company s caplial,

The directors common to the Company and to the holding Company are:

DIRECTORS SILAN IFEALTH NSHAN FINANCIAL
MANAGERS LTD SOLUTIONS LTD
Losuis RIVALLAND k. ¥
Cioipeillien MEHIREH K TEN b ;
Nitlsh RENIVGLDHT! ¥ v

The Company and the Board have always maintained sn open line of communication with all stakeholders,
Key stakcholders of the Company are elients, sharcholders, employees, regulators & pgovernment
authorities, the public and invedtors, internal and external suditors among others,

The Company communicaies through emnils, social media, and its annual report, In nddition, the Group
Company s webgile through iis News Section, provides meaningful information on the Company's products
& services and financials,

Key events are set out below:
June Annual Meeting of Sharcholders (By way of Writlen Resolution)

December Declaration and payment of dividend

-

-
==

Jaiyansing Soobah
Jor Swan Corporate Affairs Lid
Compnny Secretary

Oetober 1, 2020
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STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITIES

The Directors acknowledge thelr responsibilities for:

(i) The maintenance of adequate accounting records nnd mainignance of effective intemal control syslems;

{ii} the preparation of financial statements which fairly present the state of affalrs of the Company as at the
end of the financial year and the results of its operations and cash fows for that year and which comply
with Internationnl Financinl Reporting Standards (IFRS);

(iii) the selection of appropriate accounting policies supporied by rensonable and prudent judgomants,

The external auditors are responsible for reporting on whether the financial statements are fatrly presented.

The Directors report that:

(1} adequate nccounting records and an effective system of nternal controls and risk management have
been maintained;

{iiy appropriate accounting policies supporied by reasonable and prudent judgements and estimates have
been used congistently;

(1) International  Financial Reporting Standards have been adhered 10, Any departure in the [alr
presentation has been disclosed, explained and quantified.

(iv) the Code of Corporate Governanee has been adhered to. Rensons have beon provided in the statemant
of compliance and Corporate Governance Report in case of non compliance with any requirement,

Signed on behalf of the Board of Dircctars on: €2 | (e tolew- 2000

@/f =

_-Eih'E'ctur




SWAN WEALTH MANAGERS LTD

SECRETARY'S CERTIFICATE - DECEMBER 31, 2019

We certily, to the best of our knowledge and belief, that the Company has fled with the Registrar of
Companies all such returns a8 are required of the Company under the Companies Act 2001,

L

1, SGobah

For Swan Corporate Affairs Lid
Compuny Sccretory

Date: &3\ Cr-ﬂpi:ﬂ-,u-'-.-- o I — o T



STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE
SECTION 75(3) OF THE FINANCIAL REPORTING ACT

Name of PIE: SWAN WEALTH MAMAGERS LT (the ‘Company’)

Reporting Period; Year ended December 31, 2019

W, the Directors of Swan Wealth Manngers Ltd, confirm that o the best of our knowledge:

1) the PIE has complied with all of 12 obligationg and requirements under the Notional Code of Corporate
Governonce [or Mauritus (2016) (the Cade).

SIGNED BY:

A7
RIS & a1 nsecisbnatssbi
Chalrperson

Date: .Y E":Iﬂl’.’f‘?*.*....f'}?."'f.?..
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SWAN WEALTH MANAGERS LTD

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REFORT
To the Shareholders of Swan Wealth Managers Lid

Roport on the i;udll of the Finanelal Statemenis

Opinion

We have nudited the financial statements of Swan Wealth Managers Ltd, on pages 6 to 41 which comprise
the siatement of financial position as at December 31, 2019, and the statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and statement of eash flows for the year then ended,
nnd notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the financial statements on pages 6 to 41 give o true and fair view of the financial position of
the Company as at December 31, 2019, and of its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with International Finaneial Reporting Standards and comply with the Companies Act
2001,

Bagid for Opinion

We conducted our audit tn accordance with Internntional Standurds on Auditing (15As), Our reapondibilities
under those standards are further described In the Auditor 's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Finaneial
Statements section of our report, We are independent of the Company in accordance with the International
Ethies Standasds Board for Accountants' Code of Ethics for Professional Accountemts (IESBA Code)
together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial stalements in Mauritius,
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the [ESBA

Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate 1o provide o basis
for our opinion.

Other Informatlon

The Directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report, but does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our ﬁpil’liﬂﬂ on the financial statements does not eover the other information and we do not CXpProgs any form
of assuranee conclugion thereon,

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information s materially inconsistent with the finaneial
aglatements or our knowledge obtained in the nudit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated, If, baged
on the work we hive performed, we conclude that there is o materinl misstatement of this other information,
we are required to report that fact, We have nothing to report in this rogard.

Corporate Governance Repovt

Our responalbility under the Financial Reporting Act is to report on the compliance with the Code of
Corporate Governance disclosed in the annunl repori and assess the explanations given for non-compliance
with any requirement of the Code, From our assessment of the disclosures made on corporate governance in
the annual report, the public interest entity has, pursuant to section 75 of the Financlal Reporting Act,
complied with the requirements of the Code.

B G Co, & firm of CHALe Fed ACCOURTAnTS I MauFItuE, 18 & member of DDO international Limited, & UK campany limited by
AFARLEd, Bl ToFR parL of the Internaticnal BUO netwerk of indepandent mamter fifms,

BOO b e Brand name for the BDO netwark and Tor each af the BDOD Membar Floma,
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S(a)
INDEPENDENT AUDMTORS' REFORT (CONT'D)
To the Shareholders of Swan Wenlth Managers Lid

Responsibilities of Directors nnd Those Charged with Governance Tor the Financial Statemonts

The Direetors are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and in compliance with the requirements of the
Companies Act 2001, and for such intemal contrel a8 the Directors determing Is necessary o enoble the
preparation of the financial statements that are Tree from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
CITOr,

In preparing the Nnancial statements, the Directors are responsible for nssessing the Company's ability to
continue ns & going concem, disclosing, ns npplicable, maiters related to going concemn and using the going
concern bosis of accounting unless the directors either intend o liquidate the Company or o céase
operations, or have no realistic nlternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for oversecing the Company's financil reporting process,
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain rensonable assurance about whether the financial siatements ns n whole are free
from material missistement, whether due to fraud or error, and 1o issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assuranee, but is not a guarantee that an nudit conducted in
aceordance will 15As will always detect 4 material missiatement when it exists, Misstatements can arise
fromm Traud or ervor and ore considered material i, individually or in the aggregnte, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users tken on the bosis of these financial statoments.

As part of an audit in secordance with 15As, we exercise professional judgement ond maintain professional

scepticisin throughout the audi, We nlso;

: Identilly and nssess the risks of materinl missttement of the financial stntoments, whether due o fraud
or error, design and peiform nudit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide n basis for our opinion. The risk of not detegting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting froim error, a8 fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal eontrol

. Obiain an understanding of internal control rolevant to the audil in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectivencas of the Company's internial control,

- Evaluate the appropriatencas of accounting policles used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related diselosures made by direciors,

- Conclude on the appropriateness of the divectors' use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the nudit evidence obiained, whether n material uncertainty exists rolated to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern, 1f
we conelude that o material uncertainty oxists, we are required to draw altention in our auditor's report
to the related disclosures in the [inancial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, 1o modily
our opinion, Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
repart, However, future events or conditions may ¢ause the Company o cense to continue ns n going
CONEE,
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3(b)
INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REFORT(CONT'DY)
To the Sharcholders of Swan Wealth Managers Lid

Auditor’s Respansibilities for the Audit of the Finanecial Statements (cont'd)

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the fnancial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves failr presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matiers, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, incliding any significant deficiencies In Internal
control that we identily during our audit,

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
Componivs Act 2001

We have no relationship with, or interests in, the Company, other than in our capacity a% auditors and
n,!¢nlinﬂﬂ it the ordinary eovrse ol business.

We have obtained all information and explanations we have required.

In our opinion, proper accounting records have been kept by the Company as far as it appears from our
examinniion of those recorids,

Giher Matier

This report is made solely to the members of Swan Wealth Managers Ltd (the "Company™), as a body, in
sccordance with Section 205 of the Companies Aet 2001, Our audit work hos been undertnken so that we
might state to the Company's sharcholders those matters we are required 1w sinte to them in an auditor's
raport and for no other purpose, To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or nssume
responsibility to snyone other than the Company and the Company's shareholders ns a body, for our nudit
wark, for thig report, or for the apinions we have formed,

qﬂﬂ Lk P
BDO & CO
Charfered Acconiten

ez L/

Port Louis, Ameenah Ramdin FCCA, ACA
Muuritius. Licensed by FRC

October 1, 2020
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6
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION - DECEMBER 31, 2019
Notes 2019 2018
ASSETS Hs. Rs,
Mon-current asscis
Equipment 5 353,162 130,417
Right of use assots S(n) 5,020,208 .
Investment in subsidiary company 6 1,300,000 600,000
Financial assets at amortised cosi 7 51,945830 32,879,109
Finonecial assets ol Fair Value Through
Other Comprehensive Ineome HIE:] : Illig':{ulg | ;r.l.g'gg:
Deferred tax nssel B39,670
61,918,700 35,179,202
Current pssely
Trade receivables 10 56,993,601 60,811,842
Finaneial assets at amortised costs 7 8,304,069 5,271,396
Olier nasets 1,086,765 790,136
Cufrcnt tnx nsscts 15(c) 1,728,111 .
Cnsh and cosh equivalents I 366,008,023 235 541,036
435,120,620 ~ 3024 l';l.zljlﬁl N
Total nssets 4'!?.111'?.{35 . 3!7.59'.1,{2-32
EQUIT\" AMD LIABILITIES
Capital and reserves
Share cupital 12 1,600,000 1,600,000
Retained carnings 360,970,575 294,676,428
Total equity 362,570,575 296,276,428
Non-curreni liabilities
Lease linbility 5(b) 3,892,146 -
Retirement benefit obligations 13 .;,W‘.I 057 1,83 : .liﬁ
¥ § EIEJ; |i a
Current Habilities
Trade and other payables 14 28,425,944 28,561,982
Dividend payable 16 95,000,000 -
Current tax liabilitles 15(c) - 9,923,996
Lease lability 5l 1,159,013 s
124,584,957 38,485,978
Total equity and labilitles 497,039.335 117,393,632

These financial statemenis have been approved for issue by the Board of Directors op Octoper 1, 2020,

v

" Director

F;,_,,.m'rﬁﬁtr

The notes on pages 10 to 41 form an integeal part of these financial statements,

Auditor's report on pages 3 to 5(b).
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7

STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOS5 AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME - YEAR

ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2019

Turover
Cither income
Net foreign exchange gain

Administralive oxpensos

Finance cosis
Prafit before tuxntion
Tuxation

Praofit for the year

Other comprehensive income for the year
ftems thar witl not be reelassified to profit or loss:
Remeasuroment of defined benefit obligations

Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax

Total comprehensive income for the year

Notes 2019 2018
Hs. Rs.
17 210,132,944 209,686,441
I8 982,832 929,202
20 B, 720,495 GH5,773
(63.850,308)  (56,301,716)
174,988,966 154,999,700
19 (316,395) -
21 174,669,571 154,999,700
15(a) (12,663,283)  (29911,138)
162,006,288 125,088 562
13 (vil) #58,001) (143,431

(712,141) (119,048)

161,294,147 124,969 514
e —

#

The notes on pages 10 to 41 form an integral part of these financial statements,

Auditor's report on pages 5 to 5(b).
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8
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY - YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2019
Share Retalned Total
Mate Capltal  Earnings Equily
Rs. Rs. Rs.
Balance ot Junuary 1, 2019 1,600,000 294676428 296,276,428
Profit for the yeor = 162,006,288 162,006,288
Other comprehensive income
for the year . (712,141) (712,141)
Drividends 16 - (95,000,000  (95,000,000)
Balance at December 31, 2019 1,600,000 360,970,575 362,570,575
Balance ot January [, 2018
Profit for the year = 125,088,362 125,088,562
Othor comprohensive income
for the year . (119,048) (119,048)
Dividends 16 - __(B5,000,000)  (85,000,000)

Balance ot Decomber 31, 2018

1,600,000 294,676,428 296,276,418

The notes on pages 10 to 41 form an integral part of these financial statements,

Auditors' report on pages 5 to 5(b).
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS - YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2019

~ Notes 2019 2018
Cash Now from operating activities Rs. R,
Profit before wxation 174,669,571 154,999 700
Adjustments for:
Depreciation on equipment 5 262,164 241,499
Amaortisation of Right of use asset Sfu) 1,126,986 .
Provision for impairment 10 i} 700912 831,377
Foreign exchange dilferences on bonds (2,240,232} {B26,061)
Retirement benefit obligation 13 2,302,430 (1,525,725)
Interest Income 7 (982,832) (929,202)
Interost expense (k) 316,395 =
Net foreign exchange gain/loss 20 (6,480,263) 140,289
Changes in working capital:
= Trade receivablos 3,117,269 (23,161,443)
- Oiher nsscin (296,609) {549, 7864)
- Trade und other payables (136,038)  18,223,48]
Caah genernted from operations 172,359,853 147 464,129
Interest received 7 1,027,728 509,440
Tax paid 15 (23416,783)  (34,154,421)
Corporate social responsibility contributions during the year 15 (2,682,571) (2,634,571)
Net cash gonerated from operating activitics 147,288,227 121,184,575
Cash flow used in investing activities
Purchuse of equipment 5 (285,009) (242,138)
Additional investment in subsidiary company 6 (700,000) =
Purchases of financial nssets 7 (26,141,254)  (36,904,683)
Bonds matured 7 £.237.1%0 &
Net cash used in investing notivities (21 889.073) (17, Idf:.ﬁlzli-}_
Cash fMlow used in financing activities
Principal paid on lease linbility 5(b) (1,096,015) -
Interest paid on lease linbility &y (316,195) .
Dividends paid 16 . (85,000,000)
Neit cagh used in financing activities (1,412,430) (85,000,000
Incrense/{Decrense) in ensh and cash equivalents 123,986,724 (':‘.'E!.Iﬂl
Maovement in eash and cagh equivalents
At January 1, 235841,036 236,643,571
Incrense/(Decrense) 123,986,724 (962,246)
Effects of oxchange rate changes 6,480,263 (140,289)
At December 11, 1 166,008,023 EHIH].GM

The netes on pages 1010 4] form an integral part of these financial stalements.

Auditors' report on pages 5 1o 5(b),
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2019

ER

GENERAL INFORMATION

Swan Wenlth Managers Lid is a limited liability company incorporated and domiciled in Mauritius, The
nddress of ihe registered office is Swan Group Centre, 10, Intendance Streat, Port Louis,

These financial statements will be considered nnd approved at the forthcoming Annual Meeting of the
Company.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal secounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial statements are sel oul
below,

Basis of preparation

The financial statements of Swan Wealth Managers Lid comply with the Companies Act 2001 and have
been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS), These financial
staternents are that of an individual entity, The financinl statements are presented in Mauritian Rupees
and nll values are rounded to the nearest Rupee (Rs,), The finoncial statements are propared under the
historical cost convention, except that!

(1) finaneial assets/labilitles ot fuir value through profit or loss nnd;
(i1} relevant finaneial assets and fnancinl liabilities at amortised cost,

Stanclurds, Amendments to published Standards aivd Interpretatlons effective in the reporting period

IFRS 16 Leases resulis in the recognition of nlmost all leases on balance sheet. The standard removes
the current distinction between operating and financing leases and requires recognition of an asset (the
right o use the lensed item) and o financial lability 1o pay rentals for virtually all lease contracts, The
Company has adopted 1FRS 16 from January 1, 2019, but has not restated comparatives for 2018, ag
permitted under the specific transition provisions. The reclassifications and adjustments arising from
the new leasing rules are recognised in the opening balance sheet on January 1, 2019, The new
nccounting policies nre disclosed in note 25,

On adoption of IFRS 16, the Company recognised lense liabilitics in relation to leases which had
previously been classified as ‘operating leases’ under 1AS 17, These liabilities were measured at the
present value of the remaining lease payments, discounted using the lessee's incromental borfowing
rale a8 of January 1, 2019, The weighted average lesses’s incremental borrowing rute applied to the
loase linbilities on January 1, 2019 was 5,60%,

IFRIC 23 Uncertainty over Ineame Tax Treatments oxplains how to recognise and measure deferred
and current income tax assets and liabilities where there is uncertainty over o tax treatment, There are
no new diselosure requirements but requirement to provide information about judgements and estimates
made in preparing the financial siatements, The interpretation has no impact on the Company’s
financinl statemenis,
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2019

2.1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)
Basis of preparation (cont'd)

Standards, Amendmenis to publivhed Standards and Interpreiations effective in the reporilng perlod
{eond'd)

Prepayment Features with negative compensation (Amendiments 1o IFRS 9) enable entities to moasure
certain prepayable financlal asgsets with negative compensation at amortised cost, These assets, which
include some loan and dabi securities, would otherwise have (o be measured ot fair value through profit
or loss, To qualify for amortised cost mensurement, the negative compensation must be ‘reasonnble
compansation for early termination of the contract’ and the assel must be held within o *held 1o colleer®
business model. The amendments have no impact on the Company's linancial statements,

Longsterm Interests in Associates and Joit Ventures (Amendments o 1AS 28) clarily the sceounting
for long-term intereats In an assoclate or joint venture, which in substance form part of the net
investment fn the asseciate or joint venture, but to which equity accounting is not applied, Entitics
must agcount for such interests under IFRS 9 belore applying the loss allocation and impairment
requiramoents in IAS 28, The amendments have no impact on the Company’s financial statements,

Annual Improvements to [FRSs 20152017 Cycle

+ IFRS 3 - clorified that obaining control of a business that is a joinl operation is a businoss
combination achicved tn siages,

* IFRS |1 - clarified that party obtaining joint control of a business that is a joint operation should
not remeasure its previously held interest in the joint operntion.

+  IAS 12 - clarified that income tax consequences of dividends on financial instrumants classified os
equity should be recognised nccording to where the past transactions or events that generated
distributable profits were recognised.

+  1AS 23 - cluvified that, il a specific borrowing remaing sutstanding after the related qualifying asset
is ready for its intended use or sale, it becomes part of general borrowings,

The amendments have no impact on the Company's financial statements,

Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Settloment {Amendments to 1AS 19) clarify that entitics must:

*  ealeulate the ¢urrent service cost and net interest for the remainder of the reporting period nfier a
plan améndment, curtailment or settloment by using the updated assumptions from the date of the

*+  recognise any reduction in a surplug immediately in profit or loss, either ia part of past service cost
or as n gain or loss on settlement, In other words, a reduction in a surplus must be recognised in
profit or loss even if that surplus was not previously recognised because of the tmpnet of the nsset

*  separately recognise any changes in the asset ceiling through other comprehensive

The amendments have o impact on the Company's linancial satements,
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2019

2,

2.1

2.2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)

Basis of preparation (cont'd)
Standarels, Amendments to published Standards ad Interpretations issied bt not yet effective

Cortain standards, amendments to published standards and inteiprétations have been issued that are
mandatary for nccounting periods beginning on or afler January 1, 2020 or Inter periods, but which the
Company has not early adopted

At the reporting date of these financial stntements, the following were in iaaue but not yet effective:

Sule or Contribution of Assots betwean an Investor and its Assogiate or Joint Veniure (Amendments (o
IFRS 10 and [AS 28)

IFRS 17 Insurance Coniracts

Definliion of n Business { Amendments o [FRS 1)

Definition of Materinl (Amendmenis to 1AS 1 and 1AS B)

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform (Amendments to IFRS 9, TAS 39 and IFRS 7)

Where relevant, the Company is still evaluating the effeet of these Standards, Amendments to published
Standards and Interpretations issued but not yei effective, on the presentation of its financial statements,

The preparation of linancial statements in conformity with 1IFRS requires the use of certain eritical
aceounting estimates, 1t nlso requires management to exercise its judgement in the process of applying
the Company's necounting policies. The oreas invalving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or
orens where nssumptions and estimates are significant 1o the financial statements, are disclosed in Mote
4.

Equipment

Equipment are staied ai historical cost less deprecintion. Historical cost includes expenditure that s
directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the assets carrying amount o recognised as o separate asset as
appropriate, only when it is probable that Ruture eeonoimic benelits associated with the item will flow to
the Company and the ¢out of the Hem ean be mensured relinbly.

Depreciation 14 enleulated on the stratght line method to write off the cost of ¢ach assel 1o their redidual
vilues over thetr estimated useful life ns follows:

Furniture and fittings 104G
Motor vehieles 20%
Compuier equipment 13.3%

The assets’ residual values and useful lives nre reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, ot the end of each
feporting period,

Where the carrying amount of an asset is greater than its estimated vecoverable amount, It is wrltien
down immediately to its recoverable amount,
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2019

2.

2.2

23

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)
Equipiment (cont'd)

Cinins and losses on disposal of equipment are determined by comparing proceeds with carrying asmount
and are included in profit or loss.

Financial assets

The Company ¢lassifies its financial assets into one of the entegories discussed below, depending on
the purpose for which the asset was ocquired, Other than financial assets in a qualifying hedging
relationship, the Company's nccounting pelicy for each eategory s ns follows:

fi} Amoritved cost

These assels arise principally from the provision of goods and serviees to customers (eg trade
receivables), but also incorporate other iypes of financial assets where the objective is to hold these
assels in order 1o collect contractual cosh Mows and the contractual cash Nows are solely payments of
pringipal and interest. They are initially recognised a1 fair value plus ransaction costs that are directly
attributable to their ncquisition or issue, and are subscquently corried ot amortised cosl uaing the
effective interest rate method, less provigion for impairment.

Impairment provisions for tracle recelvables are recognised based on the simplified approach within
IFRS 9 using the lifetime expecied credit losses, During this process the probability of the non-
payment of the wade receivables is assessed. Thig probability is then multiplied by the amount of the
gxpected loss arising from default to determing the lifetime expected credit loss for the trade
receivables, For trade receivables, which are reported net, such provisions are recorded in a separite
provision account with the loss being recognised within cost of sales in the statement of comprehensive
income. On confirmation that the trade receivable will not be collectable, the gross earrying value of
the assel is written off againsi the associated provision,

Impairment provisions for receivables from related parties and loans to relaied parties are recognised
based on n forward looking expected credit logs model. The methadalogy used to determine the
smount of the provision is based on whether there has been o significant increase in eredit risk since
initial recognition of the financial asset, For those where the credit risk has not increased significantly
since initial recognition of the financial asset, twelve month expected eredit losses along with gross
interest income are recognised, For those for which eredit risk has inereased significantly, lifetime
oxpected credit losses along with the gross intercst incomé are recognised. For those that are
determined to be eredit Impalred, lifetime expected eredit losses along with interest income on a net

The Company financinl assets measured at amortised cost comprise trade receivables, financial assets ot
smoriised costs and cash and cash equivalents In the statement of financial pogition

Cash and cash equivalents includes cash in hand, deposits held al call with banks, other short term
highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less, and - for the purpose of the
statement of eash fows - bank overdrafts. Bank overdrafls are shown within loans and borrowings in
cutrent labilities on the statement of financial position,
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2.6

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING FOLICIES (CONT'D)

Financial assets (cont'd)
(i) Falr value through other comprehensive incame

The Company holds investmenis in financial assets other than listed and unlisted entities which are not
accounted for as subsidinries, nssociates or jointly controllod entities, For those investments, the
Company has made an irmevocable election to clagsily the investments at fair valie through other
comprehensive income rather than through profit or loss as the Company considers this measurement to
be the most representative of the business model for these nsseis. They are earvied ot falr valie with
changes in fair value recognised In other comprehensive Income and accumulnted in the falr value
through other comprehensive income reserve. Upon disposal any balance within fuir value through
other comprehensive income reserve is reclassified directly to rotained eamings and is not reclassified
ter profit or loss.

The Company has debt securitics whose objective is achieved by both holding these sccurities in order
to ¢olloct contraciual cash flows and having the intention o sell the debt secuntics before maturity.
The eontractual terms of the debt securitica give rise to cagh ows that are solely paymenis ul‘pr:‘nctpnl
and Interest on the principal amount outstanding, They are carried at falr value with changes in fair
value recognised in other comprehensive income and nccumuloted in the fair value through other
comprehensive income reserve, Upon disposal sny balance within  fair value through other
comprihensive income reserve is reclassified to profit or loss.

Rividendy are recognised in profit or loss, unless the dividend ¢learly represents o recovery of part of
the cost af the investment, in which ¢age the full or partial amount of the dividend 1s recorded against
the nssocinted invesiments carrying amount,

Purchases and sales of financinl nssets measured ot fair value through other comprehensive income are
recognised on settlement date with any change in fair value between trade date and settloment date
being recognised in the fair value through other comprehensive income reserve,

Investments in subsidiary company

Separate flnemelal statements of the investor

In the separate financial statements of the investor, investments in subsidiary company is carried at
costs. The carrying amount s reduced to recognised any impairment in the value of individual
investments,

Flnanclal linbilities

The Company classifies its financial Habilities as follows:
= Trade payables and other shori-tcrm monetary liabilities, which are initially recognised at fair value
und subsequently carried ot amortised cost using the effective interest mothod.

Share eapital

Ordinary ghares are elassificd ag equity, Incremental costs directly atiributable to the issue of new
shares are shown in equity as a deduction net of iax and procecds,
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2.

2.7

(u)

(b)

(€)

28

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)
Retiremaent banefit obligations

Defiredd contribution plans

A defined contribution plan 18 4 pension plan under which the Company pays fixed contributions into a
separate entity, The Company has no legsl or constructive obligations 1o pay further contributions il
the fund does not hold sufficient assets to pay all employees the benafits relating 10 employee service
in the current and prior periods. Contributions to the Mational Penaion Seheme and the Company's
defined contribution pension plan are expensed to the statement of profit of loss in the period in which
thoy fall due,

Definved benefit plany

A delined benefit plan is o pension plan that is not a defined contribution plan, Typically defined
benefit plans define an amount of pension benefit that an employee will recelve on retirement, usually
dependent on one or more Tactors such as age, years of service and compensat fon.

The liability recagnised in the statement of linancial position in respect of defined benefit pension plans
it the present value of the defined benelit pbligation nt the end of the reporting periotl loss the fair value

of plan assets, The defined benefit obligntion s coloulated annually using the prajected unil eredit
method.

Remeasurement of the net defined benefit lability, which eomprise of actuarial gains and losses arising
from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions, (he returm on plan assets (excluding
intorast) and the effect of asset coiling (if any, excluding intevest) is recognised immediately in other
comprehensive income in the period In which it occurs. Remeasurements recognised in other
comprehensive income shall not be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periad,

The Company deiermines the net interest expense/{income) on the uet defined benelit Hability/(asset)
for the period by npplying the discount rate used to measure the defined benefit obligation at the
beginning of the annual peried to the net defined benefit labiliy/(nsset), taking into account any
changes in the net defined liability/(asset) during the period as o result of contributions and benelit
payments, Net interest expense/{ingome) is recognised in the profit or loss.

Service costs comprising current service cost, pasl sorvice cost, as wéll a8 gaing and losses on
curtailments and settlements are recognised immaediately in the profit or loss,

Crrafuifty on reflremcni

For employees who are not covered (o whe are insulficiently covered by the above pension plans), the
net present value of gratuily on retirement payable under the Workers' Right Act 2019 (2018 -
Employment Rights Aet 2018) is caleulnted by o quolified sotuary and provided for, The obligationg
arising under this item are ot funded.

Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the peried comprises of eurrent and deferred tnx, Tox is recognised in profit or loss,
excapt to the extent that it relates 1o items recognised In other comprehensive income or directly in

equity.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)

2.8 Current and deferved Income tax {(vani'd})
Current Tax :
The current income tax charge is based on taxable income for the year caleulated on the basis of tax
Inws enacted or substantially enascted by the end of the reprating peviod
Deferved Tax ;
Deferred income tax (s provided in full, using the lability method, on temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and thelr camying amounts in the ﬂﬂﬂ."‘-‘h! Hlnt.mml:ms.
However, If the deferred income tax arises (rom initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction, other than a business combination, that at the time of the transaction affects neither
nccounting nor taxable profit of less, it is not secounted for.
Deferred income tax I8 deiermined using tox rates that have been enscted by the end of the reporting
F"“'i“ﬂ anl are gup¢¢t¢d i upply in tha l'_u,:rir,r;_l when the relnted deferred income lax asset is realised or
the deferred income tax lability is settled,
Deferred tax nssets are rocognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be
available against which deductible temporary differences can be utilised,

2.9 Impairment of non=financinl assets
Anieis that have an Indefinite useful Lifo are nol subjcct 1o amortisation and dre tested mmuuﬂ:f for
impalrment, Assets that are subject to amortisation are reviewed for impairment whenever events or
changes in eircumstances indicate that the earrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment
loss 15 recognised for the amount by which the carying amount of the asset exceeds its recovarable
amount. The recoverable amount fs the higher of an asset's foir value less costs to sell and value in use,
For the purposes of assessing Il'i'l]'iﬂll't'l'il!l‘l.t. nEsoty are Hruup;d al the lowest levels for which there are
separately identifiable eash flows (cash=generating units),

2. 10 Lenses

In 2018, the Company did not have finance leases. All other leases were clagsitied ns operating loases.

F“?IHBI"IH mcle under Qp-:l'ﬂt'lﬂﬂ leases (nel of any tticentives received from the ledgor) were charged (o
profit of loss on a stralght-line basis over the period of the lense.

From January 1, 2019, all leases are accounted for by recognising a right-of-use asset and o lease
lnbility except for:

*  Lenses of low valuo assels; and

*  Leases with a duration of 12 months or less.

filentifving Leases

The Company accounts for a contract, or o portion of a contract, as & lease when it conveys the right to
use an assel for & perod of tUme In exchange for consideration. Leases are those contracts that aatisfy
the following eriteria.

(a) There is an identified naset;

(b) The Company obtains substantially all the ceonomic benefits from use of the asset; and

() The Company has the right to direet use of the asset,
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2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)

2,10 Leases (cont'd)

Tdentifying Leases {cont'd)

The Company considers whether the supplier has subsinntive substitution rights. If the supplier does
hove those rights, the contract is not identified as giving rise to o lense.

In determining whether the Company obtains substantially all the economic bonefits from use of the
aszel, the Company considers only the ceonomie benelits that arise use of the agset, not those incidental
to legal awnership or other potential benefits,

In determining whether the Company has the right to direct use of the asset, the Company considers
whether it directs how and for what purpose the asset is used throughout the period of use. If there are
no significant decisions to be made because they are pre-determined due to the nature of the asset, the
Company considers whether it was invelved in the degign of the asset in o way that predetermines haw
and for what purpose the assel will be used throughout the period of use. 1T the conteact or portion of a
continet does not satisly these erileria, the Company applies other applicable IFRSs rather than IFRS
16.

Lease linbilities are measured at the present value of the contractunl paymaents due o the lessor aver tho
lease torm, with the discount rate determined by reforence to the rate inherent in the lease unloss (as is
typically the case) this is not readily determinable, in which ease the Company’s ineremental borrowing
rate on commencement of the lease 18 used. Vanable lease payments are only included in the
measurement of the leage liability il they depend on an index or rate. In such cases, the initial
mensurement of the lease lability nssumes the variable element will remain unchanged throughout the
lense term, Other varinble lease pnyments are expensed in the period to which they relate.

On initial recognition, the carrying value of the lease liability also incluides:

+  nmounits expected 1o be payable under any residual value guarantce,

*  the oxercise price of any purchase option granted in favour of the Company (f it is rensonable
certain 1o asseas that oplion;

* any penalties payable for terminating the lense, if the term of the lease has been estimated on the
basia of termination option being excroised.

Right-of=use nssets nre initinlly measured at the amount of the lease linbility, reduced for any lease

incentives received, and inereased lor:

*  lease payments made at or bofore commencement of the l¢ase;

*  initial dircet costs incurred; and

*  the amount of any provigion recognised where the Company 18 contraciually required to dismantle,
remove or restore the leased asset (typleally leaschold dilapidations).

Subsequent to Initinl mensurement lease linbilities increase as o result of interest charged at a constant
rate on the balance outstanding and are reduced for lease payments made. Right-of-uge assels are
amortised on a straight=line basis over the romaining term of the lease or over the remaining economic
life of the asset if, rarely, this is judged o be shorter than the lease terin,
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2. BIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'IY)
210 Leases (cont'd)

Jifentifying Leases (conr'd)

When the Company revises its estimate of the term of any lease (because, for example, it re-nssesses the
probability of a lessee extension or termination option being exercised), it adjusts the carrying amount
of the lease liability to reflect the payments to make over the rovised torm, which are didscounted at the
same discount rate that applicd on lease commencement. The carrying valug of lense labilities i3
similarly revised when the variable element of future lease payments dependent on a rate or index is
revised, In both enses an equivalent ndjustment 15 made 1o the ¢arrying value of the right-of-use asset,
with the revised earrying amouni being amortised over the remalining (revised) lease term.

When the Company renegotiates the conteactual terms of a lease with the lessor, the accounting

depends on the nature of the modifieation;

+ if the renegotiation resulls tn one or more additional assets being leased for an amount
comumensurate with ihe stndalone price for the additional rights-of-use obtained, the modifiention
s necounted for ns o separate lense in secordance with the above policy,

* in all other cases where the renegotisted increases the scope of the lense (whether that is an
extension to the lease torm, or one or more additional nssets being leased), the lease liability is
remeasured using the discount rate applicable on the modification date, with the right-of-use asset
being adjusted by the same amount,

* il the renegotiation results in a decrease in the scope of the lease, both the earrying amount of the
lense liability and right-of-use nsset are reduced by the same proportion to reflect the partial of full
termination of the lease with any differonce recognised ln profit or loss. The lease liability is then
further adjusied to ensure its carrying amount reflécts the amount of the rencgotiated payments
aver the renegotinted term, with the modified lease payments discounted at the rate applicable on
the modification date. The right-of-use asset is adjusted by the same amount,

For contracts that both convey a right io the Company io use an identified asset and require services to
be provided to the Company by the lessor, the Company has lected 10 accotnt for the entire confruct ns
a lease, Le. it does allocate any amount of the contractual payments to, and account separatcly for, any
services provided by the supplier ag part of the contract,

Payments associated with short-term lenges and all lenses of low-value assets are recognised on o
straight=line basis as an expense in profit or loss,

2,11 Revenue chugnltlnn
(@) Revenue fram contracts with custoners

In case of fixed-price contracts, the customer pays the fixed amount based on a payment schedule, 1f the
services renderad by the Company exceed the payment, a conlract asset is recognised, 11 the payments
exceed the services rendered, n contract liability is recognised.

The Compony provides management, trailer fees and other services under fixed-price contracts.
Revenue from providing services is recognised In the nccounting period in which the services are
rendered, Revenue is rocognised based on the nctunl service provided to the end of the reporting period
and is determined based on the assets under management with the company.
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2.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)
2,11 Revenue Recognition (cont'd)

(b) Other revenues earned by the Company are recognized on the following bages;
*  Interest income is calculated by applying the effective interést rale to the gross earrying amount of
o finangial agset Exeepl for finaneial pasety thal subsequently becomg f:fﬂ“'[-““l*“h’“i. For credit-
imm{rul financial assels the effective interest rate is applied o the net Eﬂfr}'iﬂﬂ nmount of the
financinl nsset (nfler deduetion of the loss nllowance).

4,12 Provigions

Provigions are recognised whon the Company has o present legal or constructive obligation as a result
of pust events; it 18 probable that an outlow of resources that can be relinbly estimated will be required
to settle the obligation,

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the
presont obligation ot the end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncortaintios
surrounding the obligation.

213 Dividend distributlon

Dividend distribution to the Company's shareholders is recognised as o liability in the Company's
financial statements in the period in which the dividends are declared.

2.14 Forelgn eurrencios

Items Included in the financinl statements of each of the Group's entliles are measured using Mauritian
rupecs, the currency of the primary economic environment in which the entities operate ("functional
ourrency"). The financial statements ore presented in Maourition rupoes, which is the Company's
functional and presentation currency.

Transactions and balonges.

Forgign cuireney ransactions are tramalaled into the fiinetional CLITENEY usiing the exchange riles
prevailing on the dates of the transactions, Forelgn exchange gains and losses resulting from the
seitlemeni of such iransactions and from the translation at year<end exchange rates of monciary naseis
and linbilities denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in the statement of profit or loss. Non
monotary items that are measured at historical cost in a foreign cwrrency are translated using the
exchange rate at the date of the transaction. Non-monetary ilems that are measured al fair valug in a
foreign curvency aro translated using the exchange rates at the dite the fair value was determined.

2.15 Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are stated at falr value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.
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3.

3.1

(n)

(k)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

Finaneial risk factors

The Company's nctivities expose it 1o a variety of financinl risk: credit risk, liquidity risk and intercst-
rate risk.

A description of the significant riak factors is given balow together with the risk management policies
applicable,

Credit risk

Credit risk arises from cash and eash equivalents, contractual cosh flows of debt investments carried af
amortised cost, at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCT) and deposits with banks
and financial institutions, a8 well as credit exposures (o customers, ineluding outstanding receivables,

Credit risk s managed on a Company basis. For banks and finanelal institutions, only independently
rated parties are nccepied,

Risk control nssesses the eredit quality of the customer, tking into account its financial position, past
experience and other factors, Individunl risk limits nre sot based on internal or extemal ratings in
accordance with limits set by the bonrd. The compliance with ¢redit limits by customers is regularly
monilored by line management,

The Company's investments in debi instruments are considered to be low risk investments, The eredit
ratings of the investments are monitored for eredit deterloration.

As al December 31, 2019, wade recelvables amounted to Ry, 56,993,661 (2018 Rs.60,811,842) of
which Bx 6,010,106 (2018: Rs 5,309,194) were provided {or in the financinl statements.

Within Maorg than
Jmonths 3 months Total
[z, Rs. Rs.

Trude recaivables 50,519,037 6,464,624 56,991,661

Within hore than

3 months 3 months Total
- ke R
Tradle receivables _5'! a12,880 M

Linuidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash and marketable sccurities, the
availability of funding through an adequate amount of committed ¢redit facilities and the ability to
close out market positions. The Company aims at maintaining fexibility in funding by keeping
committed credit lines available, Management does not foresee any liquidity risk problems in the
future,
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(e

(d)
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33

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT'D)

Financial risk factors (vont'd)

Currency risk.

The Company has bank balances and receivables denominated In foreign currencies namely US dollar
(USD) and Euro (EUR), The Company ix exposed to foreign currency risk due to fluetuations in
exchange rates. At Decomber 31, 2019, if the rupee had woakoned/strengthened by 5% against the
USD and Bura with all other variables held constant, post tax profit for the year would have been
Rs.6.2m (2018: Rs3.4m) higher/lower, mainly ns o result of foreign exchange gains/losses on
iranalation of USE and Eiro,

viil i i

The Company is exposcd ta interest rale risks for its savings accounts whichi enmn floating intereat
FALER,

1019 2018
Ks. s,
Interest rate earncd on saviNgs accounts {.0% 0% = 2,30%
—— G

Fair value estimation

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets is bosed on quoted market prices at the
end of the reporting period. A market 15 regarded ns nctive if quoted prices are rendily and regularly
avallable from an exchange, dealer, broker, industry group, pricing service, or regulitory agency, and
those prices ropresont actual and regularly occurring markel transactions on an arm’s length baxzis. Tha
quoted market price used for financial assets held by the Company 15 the current bid price. These
instruments are included in level 1.

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an nctive market is detormined by using
valuation techniques. These valuation techniques maximise the use of observable market data where it

i available and rely as litle as possible on specific estimates,

I all significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are observable, the instrument is included
in level 2,

If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is
ingluded in level 3.

Capltal rlsk management

The Company's objectives when managing eapital are:

*  to safeguard the entity's nbility to continue as 0 going concern %o that it can continue to provide
returns for sharcholders and benefits for other stakeholders, and

. 3] ﬂfﬂ\'ml: an adeggunie relir o aharchalders by Iﬂ‘iﬂﬂﬂ services commensurately with the level of
riak,
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3,

33

(a)

(B)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT'D)

Capltal risk management (cont'd)

The Company sets the amount of capital in proportion to risk. The Company manages the capital
strueture and makes adjustments to it in the light of changes in economic conditions and the risk
characteristics of the underlying assets. In order io maintain or adjust the capital structure, the
Company may ndjust the amouni of dividends paid to shareholders, return eapital to shareholders, issue
new shares or sell assets 1o reduce debi,

The Company's gearing ratio is instgnificant.
CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continuously evalunted and are based on historical experience and other
factors, including expectations of future events that are believed o be reasonable under the
clreumstances,

There were no major ostimates and assumptions made during the year that have a significant risk of

causting material adjustment o the carrying smounts of company's assets and liabilitics within the next
finanecinl yenr,

Pension benelits

The prosent value of the pension obligations depends on o number of factors that are determined on an
nctuarial basis using o number of assumptions. The assumptions used in determining the net cost
{income) for the ponsions include the discount rate, Any changes in theso assumptions will impact the
carrying amount of pension obligations,

The compuny delermines the approprinte discount rate at the end of the year, This i3 the interest rate
that should be used to determine the present value of estimated future cash lows expecied to be
required fo settle the ponsion obligations. In determining the approprinte discount rate, the company
considers the interest rate of high quality corporate bond will be paid, and that have terms to maturity
approximating the terms of the related pension abligation.

Other key assumpiions for pension obligntions are based in part on current market conditions.
Additional Informatlon is disclosed in Note 13,

Impalrment of financial assets

The loss allowances for financial asscts are based on assumptions about risk of default and expected
loss rates, The Company uses judgement in making those assumptions and selecting the inputs to the
impalrment ealeulation, based on the Company's past history, existing market conditions as well as
forward looking estimates at the end of gach reporting period,



SWAN WEALTH MANAGERS LTD

24
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2019
5 EQUIPMENT Moo Computer Furmniture &
Vehicles cquipment Fitl;!;xﬁﬂ Total
 Rs Rx. s, Rs.
COST
At Tanuary 1, 2018 1,280,000 1,715463 117,256 3,312,719
Additions . 229,138 13,000 242,138
At December 31, 2018 1,280,001 1,944,601 330,256 3,554,857
Additions . 248,547 6462 245,000
At December 31, 2019 1,250,000 3,193,148 366,718 3,839,566
DEPRECIATION
At January |, 2018 1,280,000 1,478,077 224,864 2,982,941
Charge for the year - 201,110 40,389 241,499
At December 31, 2018 1,280,000 1,679,187 205,253 3,224,440
Charge for the year 246,205 15,969 262,264
Al December 31, 2019 1,280,000 1,925,482 281,212 3,486,704
NET BOOK VALUE
At December 31, 2019 . Iﬁm—lﬂﬁm 353,162
At December 31, 2018 i 265414 | 65,003 33Di-¢l?
S(n), RIGHT-0F-USE ASSET Eu&ding
5.
At January 1, 2019 6,147,194

(1)

Amortisation charge
At December 31, 2019

Amortisation charge of Rs.1,126,986 has been ineluded in ndministrative expenses.

5(b), LEASE LIABILITY

At Jonuary 1, 2019
Intorest oxpense

Loase payments
At December 3, 2019

Current
Mon current

(1,126,986)
A

Bui Idini
Rs,

6,147,194
316,395
1,412,430

051,13

1,159,013
3,892,146

_uhui—-i I KEL

The Company leascs the property with Swan Life Ltd. There are no variable lease payments,
extention and termination options included in the lense ngreement.
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S(b). LEASE LIABILITY(CONT'D)

(i)

(ify

(i)

h

Leage term

In determining the lease term, munagement considers all facts and citeumstances that create an
economic incentive to exercise an extension aption, or not exercise o lermination option. Extension
options are only included in the lease teim if the lease is rensonably certain to be extended,

2019 2018
Rs. Rs,
Interest expense (ineluded in finance coat) 316,395 =
1 | —
The total cash outflow for leases in 2019 wus Rs.1,412,430.
INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARY COMPANY 2019 2018
Rs. s
At Janunry 1, 600,000 600,000
Additions during the year 700,000 .
At December 31, © 1,300, 600,000
e R Y| T i S
Details of ihe subsidinry company are as follows: Country of
Class of % Holding incorporalion Mali
shares held S 2019 2018 and operation business
Swan Corporate Advisory
Advisors Lid Equity 100 100 Mauritius Services

The Company has taken advantage of the exemption under IFRS 10, "Consolidated Financial
Statements”, from the requirement to prepare consolidated financial statements os it and its subsidiary,
are included by full consolidation in the consolidated financial statements of its parent, Swan Life Ltd
which complies with IFRS, A copy of the consolidated linancial statements is available at the head
office of Swan Life Led, 10, Intendance Stroet, Swan Centre, Port Louis,

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT AMORTISED COST

2019 2018
Investment In Government bonds s, Rs.
Al January | 8,150,508 i
Acquisition during the year 26,141,284 36,904,683
Inierest nccrued 082,832 929,202
Interest received (1,027,728) (509,440)
Investmont matured during the year (5,217,190) -
Forcign exchange difTerences 2,240,232 826,060
Al December 31, ﬁh]ﬂlﬂgﬂ EEIHEI:H;
Anerlysed as follows |
Non current £1 945 836 12,879,109
Current ___B.304,069 5,271,396

ﬂ 249,905 EE‘I 50,505
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(i)

Ra).

(b}

(€)

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT AMORTISED COST (CONT'D)

Fair valwes of financiol asseix at amortised cost
Fair values for the following investiments was determined by reference to published price quotations in
an active market (¢lassified ag level 1in the fair value hierarchy).

1019 2018
Hs. s,
US Government Bonds 65,512,301 37,900,720
e S ——
Impairment and risk exposure 2019 2018
The carrying value of the fnancial assets al amortised Rs. R,
costs are denominated in the following cuirency:
usn fil iiﬂiﬂ'ﬂﬂ EL N EDISGE

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE

INCOME 119 2018
Rs. Rs.

Al January 1, 10,000 -

Effect of IFRS 9 reclussification . 10,000

Al December 31, 10,000 10,000

The Financial asgel represents management shares in Swan Global Funds Lid.
DEFERRED INCOME TAX

Deferred income taxes are caleulated on all temporary differences under the liability method at 17%
(2018 17%).

There is n legally enforceable right 1o offset current tax asfets againsl current tax liabilities and
deferred income tax assets and liabilities when the deferred income taxes relate to the same fiscal
authority, The following amounts are shown in the statement of financial position:

2019 2018

R, Rs.

Deferred iy nssels 2. 289,500 Iiﬂﬁ?.ﬁ?ﬁ

The movement on deferred income tax account is as follows: 2019 2018

Rs, L6
At January 1, 2019
As previously stated 1,359,676 1,359,613
Effect of IFRE 16 25 - -
= As retated 1,359,676 1,359,613
Credited/{charged) to ststement of profit or loss (note 15) 783,964 (24,321}
Credited to other comprehengive income 145,860 24,384
At December 31 2,289 500 1350676

The movement on the deferred tax nssets and liabilities during the year, without taking into
consideration the offsetting of balances within the same fiscal authority on the same entity, is as
follows;
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11, NOTES TO THE STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 2019 ___2018
R, Rs.
Cnsh and cash equivalents 366,008,023 233,54 (36

C'asli and eash qquivnignm comprise of cash in hand and bank balances.
Cash and cash equivalents are also subject to the impairment requirements of IFRS 9, no impairmant
loss wag identified,

12. SHARE CAPITAL Number of Authoriged, [ssued and
Shares Fully paid
20019& 20018 2019 2018
Hs. g,
At January | and December 31, 16,000 I.Eﬁﬂlﬂﬂﬂ Lﬁﬂﬂ;ﬂﬂﬂ
13, RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS il 2018
Hs. R,
Amounts recogniged in the statements of financial position:
Defined pension benelits (note (n)(ii}) 2854657 - 1,831,226
Other post retirement benefits (note (b {i)) 3,137,000 -
4,091 IEH lﬁﬂﬁ 1,226

Annlysed as follows:

Han-current linbility 1,831,226

3,991,657

Amounts charged to the stntement of profit or loss
Defined pension benefits (note (a)(vi)) 597,671 539,242

Cither post retirement benefits (nota (b}(iv)) 3,137,000 .
3 ﬁiﬁ“ 555"'241

Amuounis charged to the other comprehensive Income

Defined pension benefits (note (a){vii)) 858,001 143,431
; 854,001 [43,431

(n) Delined pension henefits

{(iy The plan i# o defined benefit nrrangoment, with benelits based on final salary. It provides for a
pension at retirement and o benefit on death or disablement in service before rotirement, The asiets of
the fund are held independently and administered by Swan Life Ltd.

The most recent actuarial valuation of the present value of the defined benefits obligation was carried
out at December 31, 2019, The present value of the defined benefit obligations, and the relaied curront
service cost and past serviee cost, wns measured using the Projected Unit Credit Method.

{ii) The amounts recognised in the statement of financial position are os follows:

2019 2018
Hs, i,
Present value of funded obligations 9,117,604 7486,936

Fair value of plan assets (6,262,947) _ (4,635,710)
Liabilities in the stntement of financial position 854,63 LELY
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13

{a)

RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS (CONT'D)

Defined pension benefits (cont'd)

(i) The reconeiliation of the opening balonces to the closing balances for the net delined benelit lability

(iv)

)

{vi)

i ns follows:

2019 2018
Hx, .
Al January 1, 2,831,226 4,213,520
Amount reeognised in the profit or loss statement 597,671 539,242
Amount recognised in other comprehensive income 58,001 143,431
Employer Contribution (1,432,241) (2,064,967)
At December 31, 2 454657 2 831,226
T ——

The movemant in the defined benelit obligation over the yeor is as follows:

201% ll'-l'ill L
Rs. Rs.
At January 1, 7,486,936 6,626,790
Current service cost 300,708 245,667
Interost cost 411,781 331,340
Transfor out & -
Fust service cost (nole i) 106, (1) -
Actuarial logses 812,179 283,139

Al December 31, 9,1 17,604 7,486,936
D ]

The movement in the fair value of plan assets over the yenr Is as follows:

2019 2018
1{8 Ry,
Al January 1, 4,655,710 2413,270
Expecied return on plan assets 293,453 120,664
Employer Contribution 1,432,241 2,064,967
Actuarial (loss)/gain (45,822) 139,708
Scheme Expenses ET!EEHE ;E!EBQDE
Al December 31, 1202, 4,655,
2019 2018
15" Ea'000
Actual return on plan assels 07 156
Amounts recognised in the statement of profit or loss are as follows: 2019 : 018
s, R&,
Current service cosl 00,708 245,667
Transler oul - -
Scheme Expenses 72,635 82,999
Met interest cost 118,328 210,676
Past service cost (note a) 106,000 .
07,671 539 342
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13.

{a)

{vii)

RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATION (CONT'D)
Defined pension benefits (cont'd)

Note

The Group has historically paid discretionary bonuses to s pensioners which are nlso tken into
account in the actuarial valuation of the pension fund for the funding purposes. The caloulations
carried out for the retiroment benefit obligation as required under TAS 19, did not reflect the
discretionary element in the PIEVIOUS years,

The cummulative effect thereof is not signilicant and has been adjusted prospectively in the current
(inancial year.

Amounts fﬂ‘:ﬂﬂlﬂh‘-d i other comprehensive Incoims are as Tollows: 29 %?J B

Rs. ~ Rs
Experience losses on the labilities 48 432 5410
Changes in assumptions underlying the
presgent value of the scheme 1,145,212 46,720

Ll.‘-'ﬂf-#-'?l on i'l-ﬁ’ﬂtii‘.lﬂ scheme assols £SJJ 033 139 708
mfml —me:rrl, T

(viii) The nssets of the plan are invested in the Deposit Administration Poliey underwritten by Swan lifo

{ix)

(%)

Ltd. The Deposit Administeation Policy 18 4 pooled nsuranee product for Group Pension Schamas, It
is 0 longsterm (nvestment policy which nims o provide o smooth progression of retum from one year
to the next without the regular Auctuntions nssocinted with asset-linked Investments such as Equity
funds. Mareaver, the Deposit Admnistration Policy offers a minimum guaranteed return of 4.0% per
annum,

The principal actuarial assumptions used for the purposes of the actunrial valuations were:

2019 2018
Digeount rate 4.9% 5,80
Expected rate of return on plan assels #,9%, 5.8%
Future long-term salary incroase 4.0% 5.0%
Future pension incrense 0.0% 0,0%;
WPS ceiling increnses 4.0% 4,0%
Post retirement annuily rates Swin Life Swan Life

Annuity rates  Annulty rates

Sensitivity analysis on dofined benefit obligation at and of reporting period:

019 2018
Rs, R,
Incrense due 1o 1% Inerease In discouint rate 205,660 495,177
Decrease due to 1% increase in future long-term
salary assumption T48,938 562,134

The sensitivy analyses above have been determined based on sensibly possible changes of the discount
rile or salary increase rate occurring ot the end of the reporting period if all other assumptions
remainod unchanged.
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13, RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATION (CONT'D)

{n} Delined pension beneflts (cont'd)

{x) The sensitivity analysis may not be representative of the actual change In the delined benefit
obligation g it {8 unlikely that the change in assumptions would occur in isolation of one another as
some of the assumptions may be correlated. There was no change in the methods and assumptions
used in preparing the sensitivity analysis from prior years.

(xi) The defined benefit pension plan exposer the Company to actuarial risks, such as longevity risk,
curreney risk, interest rate risk and market (investment) risk.

{(xil) The funding requirements are based on the pension fund's actuarial measurement framework st out in
the funding policies of the plan,

(xiil) The Compaony expects o pay Rs Ldm [n contributions to s post-employment benefit plang for the
year ending December 31, 2020,

{xiv) The weighted avernge durntion of the defined benefit abligation is 10 years for the Company at the
end of the reporting period (2018 7 vears),

{b) Other post retirement beneflts
Other post retirement benelits comprise of rexidual retirement gratuities,

(i) The amounts recognised in the statement of financial position are as follows:

2019

Rs,
Proaant value of funded abligations 3.137.000
Fair value of plan nssets .
Linbilities in the statement of financial position J,IETIBI}U

(i) The reconcilintion of the opening balances to the closing balances for the net other retirement linbility

in as follows:

2019

Rs.
At January [,
Amount recognised in the profit or loss stalement 3,137,000
Al Docember 31, jiiﬁ*ﬁﬁ

{ili) The movement in the present value of other retirement obligation over the year is ns follows:

2019

Rs.
At January 1, .
Past service cost (note a) 3,137,000
Al Docember 31, 3,137,000

e
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13, RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATION [EﬂH'I"IJ}
(b} Other post retirement benefits (cont'd)
(i) Motea
The Group has historically pud digerétionary BOnUses (o 18 peniioners which nre nlio taken into
aceount in the actuarial valuation of the pension fund for the Tunding purposes, The caleulations
carried out for the retirement benefit obligation as required under TAS 19, did not reflect the
discretionary element in the previous yvears.
The cummulative effect thereof is not significant and has been adjusted prospectively in the current
financial year.
{iv) Amounts recognised in the statement of profit or loss are as follows: 2019
s,
Current service cost -
Past sorvica cost 3,137,000
JIIMIGM
{vi The principal nctuarial assumptions used for accounting purposes were: 2019
Discount rale 4.90%
Salary incroaso 4.00%
Average retirement age 60
Current
Swan/RMPRF
Post retirement annulty rates Rntes
—
(vi) Sensitivity analysis on othér retirément abligations at end of the 1'Ei'lﬂ|'llﬂﬂ FEl‘Jlﬂd 2019
“‘f
Impact on present value of defined benefit obligation:
Incrense due to 1% decrease in discount rate 892,000
Docrense due 1o 1% inerense in discount rate Tldiﬂﬂﬂ

The above sensitivity analysis has been carried out by recaloulating the present value of obligation at
end of period after increasing or decrensing the discount rate while leaving ull other assumptions
anehanged. Any similar variation in the other assurnptions would have shown smaller variations in the
dofined benefit obligation.

(vi)) The dofined bonefit ponsion plan exposes the Company (0 acluarial risks, such ag longevity risk,

currency risk, interest rate risk and market (premium) risk.

(viii) The weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation is 18 years at the end of the reporting

period,
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4. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 2019 2018

Rs. Bs.
Ultimate holding company 1,836,233 268,989
Intermediaie holding company 19,508,847 5421894
Fellow subsidiaries 10 17,061,811
Other payables _7,080,844 5,800,288
28,425,944 28,561,982
The carrying amourits of trade and other payables approximate their fair value,
The carrying amounts of the Company's trade and other paynbles are denominated as follows:
2019 2018
Currency . Rs.
UsD - 16,501,791
MUR 18,425,944 12,060,191
28,425,944 28,561,942
15, INCOME TAX 2019 2018
s, Rs.

{(a) Current tax on the adjusted profit for the year at 15% (2018: 15%) 12,174,754 23,039,771
(Owver) / Under provision (A50,808) 364,848
Deferred fax eredit (note 9{c)) (783,904) 24,321
Corporate social rosponsibility 1,623,301 6,462,198

12,663,283 29.911,138
2019 201K
Rs. s,

(b) Profit before tax 174,669,571 | 54,999,700
Tax calculated at the rate of | 5% (2018 15%) 26,200,435 1'-’{.149.955
Corporate social responsibility 1,623,301 6,462,198
Expensos not deductible for inx purposcs 1,433,005 248, 184
Expenses relating to exempt income 4,392,129 .
Ineome nol subject to tax (822,887) (438,368)
Incame from apecified financinl services {19,028,018) -
Deferred tax credit (note 9(¢)) (783,%64) 24,32
{Over) / Under provision (350,808) 364,848

__ 12,663,283 29911,138
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15,

(e)

16,

17

(a)

18,

19,

INCOME TAX (CONT'D)

Clurrent fax Hability!

At January 1,

(Over) / Under provision

Corporate social reaponaibility

Charge for the year

Caorporation tax Paid during the year

Corpornte socinl responsibility contributions duting the year

Payment under Advance Payment System (APS)
Al December 31,

DIVIDEND PER SHARE

Declared
Final dividend declared of Rs. 5,937 50 por ordinary share

ol

Decalied and paid

Final dividend paid ; Rs.5,312.50 per ordinary share
REVENUE

Revanue from contracts with cuslomers

Revenue from rendering of services

Disngregation of revenue from contracts with cuslomers
Service rendered

Management fecs

Commision and feos

Giroup
Non group

OTHER INCOME

Interest income
FINANCE COSTS

Interesl expenses: Lense linbility

019 2018
Rs. Hs,

992399 6,826,173
(350,808) 364,848
1,623,301 6,462,198
12,174,754 23,059,771
(6,1219587)  (7.216,609)
(2.682,571)  (2.634,571)

f 1 T:I"MIHI I’-; (16,937.814)
L) 1 1 n ' o

2019 2018
s, Ra,
&, 000,000 -
- ESIDDUEGOD
2019 2018
s, s,

129,132,944 209,686,441
T e e—

2019 2018

s ks
147,327,220 139,669,101
§1,805,714 70,017,340

2019 ~ 2018
14 Rs

121,954,111 114,487,645

l&?IITElgH 95,198,796
m

_
2019 . 201 8
Rs. Rs.
981,832 029,202
M —
2019 _ 2018
R3. Ks.

(316,395) -
L |
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20. NET FOREIGN EXCHANGE GAINS 2019 2018
Rs. Rs.
The diffarences eredited to the profit or loss included aa (ollows:
Unrealised exchange loss - (167,607)
Realised exchanye gain (1,046,140) 27,318
Unrenlised exchange gain 7,526,403 .
Exchange differences on Foreign Bonds 2,240,232 826,062
Net Forelgn exchange gains —t 95 _G85773
21. PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 2019 2018
Rs, s,
Profit belore taxation is arvived mt nfter charging:
Deprecintion on equipment (note ) 262,264 241 499
Amortisation of right of use nsset (note 5(u)) 1,126,986 .
Employee benefit expenses (oo note (a) below) 12 548,476 17,397,644
Lease rentals . 1,412,430
—
(1) Analysis of employee benelit expenses; 2019 2018
s, Rs.
Salaries and wages 17,045,997 15,259,019
Retirement benefit obligations (note 13) 3,734,607 539,342
Other costs 1,767 808 1,599,283
ITE48A76 11,897,644
I
22, HOLDING, INTERMEDIATE AND ULTIMATE HOLDING COMPANIES
The Company is controlled by Swan Financial Solutions Ltd which owns 100% of the Company's
shares, The intermediate holding company is Swan Life Ltd and its ultimate holding company 13 Swan
Gieneral Lid, All companies are incorporated in Mauritiug and their registered offices are situated ot
Swin Cenire, 10 Intendonce Street, Port Louis,
23, RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 2019 2018
Ri. Ra.
Amtount cue io;
- Intermedinte holding company 19,508,847 5,421,894
« Ultimate holding company 1,836,233 268,980
- Follow subsidiary 20 'ITIDM.EI 1
Amount receivable from:
- Intermediate holding company 16,553,397 34,166,037
= Ultimate holding company 1,917,946 9R7.R10
= Fellow subsidiaries I_'Iﬂﬂﬁ,lﬁ_? 3,002,123
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23, RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONT'D) 2019 2018
s, Rs.

Muanagement fees received from:
- Intermediate holding company 108,533,810 03,898 156
- Ultimate holding company 5,252,295 4,939,048
Fellow subsidiary 8,168,006 4 467976
Rebilling expenses
= Intermadiate holding companies 14,409,763 11,769,179
- Ultimate holding company-Medical oxpensos 674,293 494 528
- Intermadiate holding company-Rental expenses - 1412430
= lmermedinle hul#inn- Inleresl exponseg A16,395
- Intermediate holding- Lease lability 5,051,159
« Fellow subsidinry-Secreturin] fees expense 150,000 210,600
= Fellow subsidiary-Monagement fees and recharges . 16,501,791
- Pension paid to Intermediate holding company 2.71 Iiil'il‘ﬁI 2,997 677
The above transactions have been made on normal commercial terms in the nermal course of business,
For the yoar ended December 31, 2019, the Company has nol recorded any impairment of receivables
relating to amounis awed by related parties (2018 Nil), This assessmant 18 undertaken each Nnancial
year thrmmh examining the financial :ll.‘lﬁllil.}r'L ol the related pany, There @ no collateral held agmnst
the amount receivables from related parties,

{(n) Key managament parsonnol compensation 2019 2018

s, s,
Salories and short tenm employee benefits 7,923,981 3,981,303
Post employment benefits 268,448 410,918
F:'-Ilﬂ.ﬂ‘} 4,392,231
]

24, EVENTS AFTER THE REFORTING FERIOD

a)  Swan Wealth Managers has expressed its interest to invest in Dolberg Rentals Pty, o subsidiary of
Swan General Lid baged in South Afrmica. The transaction has already obtained board approval and
implementation is now being subject o all regulatory approval being obitained,

by COVID-19 outbreak poses n serious public henalth threat worldwide, Like many other countrics, i1 is

expected that the economy n Maouritius will be adversely impacied by the slowing global netivity,
There is barely any visibility on how long COVID:19 will lnst and what will be its full impact on
sociaty, businesses, and the economy. While we acknowledge this state of affairs, we believe that
marketd will recover as they have always done in the past.

The company also believes that its liquidity position is adequate 1o ensure any fulure commitments and
obligations that may arise are settled, As such, the finoncinl stntements ns presented have been
prepared on a going concern basis.
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23,

{a)

(n)
(b)

(€)

(d)

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Impact on the financial statements - IFRS 16

The Company ndopted IFRS 16 with a transition date of January 1, 2019, The Company has chosen not
io restate comparatives on adoption of the standard, and therefore, the revised requirements are not
reflected in the prior yoar financial statements, Rather, these changes have been processed at the date of
initial application {i.c. January 1, 2019) and recognised in the opening equity balances,

Effective January 1, 2019, IFRS 16 has replaced IAS 17 Leases nnd IFRIC 4 Determining whether an
Arangement Contning a Lease.

IFRS 16 provides o single lessee accounting model, requiring the recognition of assets and liabilities
for all leases, together with options to exclude leases where the lense term is 12 months or less, or
where the underlying astet is of low value, IFRS 16 substantinlly carries forward the lessor accounting
in IAS 17, with the distinction between operating leases und finance lcases being retained, The
Compnny does nol have leasing activities ncting os o lossor.

Transition Mothod and Practical Expedients Utilised

The Company adopted IFRS 16 using the modified retrospective approach, with recognition of
transitional adjusiments on the date of initial application (January 1, 2019), without restatement of
comparative figures, The Company elecied 1o apply the practical expedient to not reassess whether a
contract is, or contping a lease at the date of initinl application. Contracts entered into before the
transition date that were not identified ns lenses under 1AS 17 and IFRIC 4 were not reasscised, The
definition of a lease under IFRS 16 was applied only to contracts ontered inte or changed on or alter
January 1, 2019,

IFRS 16 provides for cortain optional practical expedients, including those related to the initial
adoption of the standard, The Company applied the following practical expedients when applying [FRS
16 1o leases previously classified as operating leases under IAS 17

The Company has only one lease and has used the current market prime lending rate as discount rate;
Exclude initinl direct costs from the measuromant of right-of~use assets at the date of initial application
for lenses where the right-of-use asset was determined as if IFRS 16 hod been applied since the
commencement date;

Relignee on previous asscasments on whether leases are onerous as opposcd to preparing an impairment
review under JAS 36 as at the date of initial application; and

Applied the exemption not to recognise right-of-use assets and liabilitics for leases with less than 12
months of lease term remnining as of the date of initial application.

As n lessee, the Company previously classified leases as operating lenses based on its nssessment of
whether the lense transferred substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership, Under IFRS 16,
the Company recognises right-ol-use nsset and lease linbility for its loase.
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25. CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)

{a) Impact on the financial statements - IFRS 16 (cont'd)

Transition Method and Practical Expedients Utilised {(coni'd)

On adoption of IFRS 16, the Company recognised right-of-use assets and lease labilities as follows:

Clagsilication under
1AS 17

Right-of-use nsseis

Lease habilitics

All other operating leases

Offiece Hl:ll.wl.:i Right-of-use assets are
measured at an amount equal to the
lense lability, adjusted by the amount
of nny prepald or accrued lease
payments,

All ather! the carrying value that
would have resulted from IFRS 16
being applied from the
commencement date of the leases,
subject to the practical expedients
noted above,

Mensured ot the present value
ol the remaining lense
payments, discounted using the
Company's incremental
borrowing rate as ot January 1,
2019, The Company's
ingremental borrowing rate is
the rate nt which a similar
borrowing could be obtained
from an independent creditor
under -:nmnnrr-bl-: terma and
conditions, The weighied-
avernge rate applied was
5.60%,

The following table presents the impact of adopting ITFRS 16 on the statement of financial position as at

January 1, 2019:

Absols

Rightsofsuse nsset
Deferred inx nssels
Linbility

Lense linbility
Deferred ax asscla

December 31, 2018
As originally

Adjusiments Prosentod
Rs,
() -
{b) *
(e) -
(k) .

(1) The ndjustment to right-ofsuse nsset is s follows:

Operating type loase
Right-of-use assel

January, |
IFRS 16 2019
Bs. [s.
ﬁ.M?,I‘Hr 6,147,194
(1,045,023) (1,045,023)
G, 147,194 6,147,194
{1,045,023) (1,045,023}
R4,
ﬁ'u 147,194
6,147,194
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2%, CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING FOLICIES (CONT'DY)
{a) Impact on the inancial statements - IFRS 16 {cani'd)

(i) Deferred tax assots and liabilities were adjusted to refleet the tax effeet of the other adjusiments
recorded,

(111} The following table reconciles the minimum lense commitments disclosed in the Company’s Decembar

31, 2018 snnual financial statements to the amount of lease habilities recognised on January 1, 2019;

January 1,
2019
R,
Minimum operating lease commmitment at December 31, 2018 6,147,194
Less: short=term loases not recognised under [FRS 16 .
Leas: low value lensex not recopnised under IFRS 16
Plus: effect of extension options reasonably certain (o be exercised .
Undiseounted leage payments 6,147,194
Less: effect of discounting using the incremental borrowing rate
as ot the date of initial application
Lease linbilitics for leases classified ns operating type under IAS 17 =
Lease linbility as ot January 1, 2019 Eilﬁiiiﬁ
Of which are:
Current loase liabilitics 1,006,035
Mon-gurrent lease liabilitics 5,051,159

EALIACLE



